10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

li

BEFORE THE .
FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

In the Matter of

FUEL AND PURCHASED POWER

COST RECOVERY CLAUSE WITH
GENERATING PERFORMANCE INCENTIVE
FACTOR.

ELECTRONIC VERSIONS OF THIS TRANSCRIPT ARE
A CONVENIENCE COPY ONLY AND ARE NOT
THE OFFICIAL TRANSCRIPT OF THE HEARING,

THE .PDF VERSION INCLUDES PREFILED TESTIMONY.

VOLUME 2

Pages 204 through 352

PROCEEDINGS: HEARING

BEFORE : CHAIRMAN BRAULIO L. BAEZ
COMMISSIONER J. TERRY DEASON
COMMISSIONER RUDOLPH "RUDY" BRADL
COMMISSIONER LISA POLAK EDGAR
COMMISSIONER ISILIO ARRIAGA

DATE: Monday, November 7, 2005

TIME: Commenced at 1:00 p.m.

PLACE: Betty Easley Conference Center
Room 148
4075 Esplanade Way
Tallahassee, Florida

REPORTED BY: LINDA BOLES, RPR, CRR
Official FPSC Reporter
(850) 413-6734

APPEARANCES : (As heretofore noted.)

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

204

EY

DOCUMENT RUMBER-DAT

| {028 Wpv 168

ot ankdidicoitng o1 oD



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

NAME -
CARLOS ALDAZABAL
Prefiled Direct Dated
Prefiled Direct Dated
Prefiled Direct Dated
BENJAMIN F. SMITH
Prefiled Direct Dated

JOANN T. WEHLE

Prefiled Direct Dated
Prefiled Direct Dated

GERARD J. YUPP

Direct Examination by
Prefiled Direct Dated

INDEHX

WITNESSES

9-9-05

Inserted
Inserted
Inserted

Inserted

Inserted
Inserted

Mr. Butler

4-1-05

Inserted

Prefiled Direct Dated 9-9-05 Inserted

Cross Examination by Mr.
Cross Examination by Ms.

Perry
Rodan

Redirect Examination by Mr. Butler

CERTIFICATE OF REPORTER

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

205

PAGE NO.

208
218
228

244

257
266

296
298
310
335
339
350

352




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

EXHIBITS

NUMBER : ID.
4

5

6

7

8

9

10

76 Listing of Additional Stipulated 293

Issues and Positions

77 Customer Comments 295
78

NYMEX Gas Prices as of 11-4-05 338

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

206

ADMTD.

350

350

350

350

350

350

350

294

351




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

PROCEEDTINGS

207

(Transcript follows in sequence from Volume 1.)

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

208

TAMPA ELECTRIC COMPANY
DOCKET NO. 050001-EI
FILED: 03/01/05

BEFORE THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
PREPARED DIRECT TESTIMONY
OF

CARLOS ALDAZABAL

Please state your name, address, occupation and

employer.

My name is Carlos Aldazabal. My business address is 702
North Franklih Street, Tampa, Florida 33602. I am
employed by Tampa Electric Company (“Tampa Electric” or
“company” ) in the position of Manager, Regulatory

Affairs in the Regulatory Affairs Department.

Please provide a brief outline of your educational

background and business experience.

I received a Bachelor of Science Degree in Accounting in
1991, and received a Masters of Accountancy from the
University of South Florida in Tampa in 1995. I am a
CPA in the State of Florida and have accumulated 10
years of electric utility experience working in the
areas of fuel and interchange accounting, surveillance
reporting, and budgeting and analysis. 1In April 1999, I

joined Tampa Electric as Supervisor, Regulatory
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Accounting. - In January 2004, I was promoted to Manager,
Regulatory Affairs. My present responsibilities include
managing cost recovery for fuel and purchased power,

interchange sales, and capacity payments.

What is the purpose of your testimony?

The purpose of my testimony is to present, for the
Commission’s review and approval, the final true-up
amounts for the period from January 2004 through
December 2004 for both the Fuel and Purchased Power Cost
Recovery Clause (“fuel clause”) and the Capacity Cost
Recovery Clause (“capacity clause”). I also present the
wholesale incentive benchmark for January 2005 through
December 2005 as well as the actual incremental
operation and maintenance (“0&M”) security alert and
hedging expenses for the period January 2004 through

December 2004.

What is the source of the data which you will present by

way of testimony or exhibit in this process?

Unless otherwise indicated, the actual data is taken
from the books and records of Tampa Electric. The books
and records are kept in the regular course of business

2
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in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles and practices and provisions of the Uniform

System of Accounts as prescribed by this Commission.

Have you prepared an exhibit in this proceeding?

Yes. I have prepared Exhibit No. (CA-1), entitled
"Fuel and Purchased Power Cost Recovery and Capacity

Cost Recovery” that contains four documents as described

in my testimony.

CAPACITY COST RECOVERY CLAUSE

Q.

What is the final true-up amount for the Capacity Cost

Recovery Clause for the period January 2004 through

December 2004°?

The final true-up amount for the capacity clause for the
period January 2004 through December 2004 is an over-

recovery of $542,557.

Please describe Document No. 1 of your exhibit.

Document No. 1, page 1 of 4, entitled “Tampa Electric
Company Capacity Cost Recovery Clause Calculation of
Final True-up Variances for the Period January 2004

3
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Through December 2004", shows the calculation of the
final over-recovery of $542,557. The actual capacity
cost under-recovery, including interest was $7,126,422
for the period January 2004 through December 2004 as
identified in Document No. 1, pages 1 and 2 of 4. This
amount, less the actual/estimated under-recovery
approved in FPSC Order No. PSC-04-1276-FOF-EI issued
December 23, 2004 in Docket No. 040001-EI of $7,668,979,
results in a final over-recovery for the period of
$542,557 as identified in Document No. 1, page 4 of 4.
This over-recovery amount will be applied in the
calculation of the capacity cost recovery factors for

the period January 2006 through December 2006.

Q. What is the estimated effect of this £542,557 over-
recovery in the January 2004 through December 2004
period on residential bills during the January 2006

through December 2006 period?

A. The $542,557 over-recovery will cause a 1,000 kWh

residential bill to be approximately $0.03 lower.

Incremental Security Alert Expenses
Q. What were Tampa Electric’s actual 2004 incremental O&M

costs for security alert expenses as a result of the

4
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events of September 11, 20017?

As shown in Document No. 1, Page 2 of 4, line 4, Tampa
Electric incurred $589,444 for incremental O&M security
expenses for measures taken by the company to protect its

generating facilities for the period January 2004 through

December 2004.

How did the actual incremental O&M security costs compare

to the costs included in the 2004 Actual/Estimated

capacity filing?

Actual incremental O&M security costs were $56,571
higher than projected. To calculate incremental costs,
Tampa Electric compared its actual total security O&M
expenses to pre-9/11 annual security spending known as
the baseline. All incremental O&M security costs were
separately identified and any savings gained through the
implementation of any security related projects were
credited pursuant to the method described in Order No.

PSC-03-1461-FOF-EI, issued December 22, 2003.

FUEL AND PURCHASED POWER COST RECOVERY CLAUSE

Q.

What is the final true-up amount for the Fuel and
Purchased Power Cost Recovery Clause for the period

5
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January 2004 through December 2004°?

The final fuel clause true-up for the period January
2004 through December 2004 is an over-recovery of
$5,106,655. The actual fuel cost under-recovery,
including interest, was $25,877,670 for the period
January 2004 through December 2004. This $25,877,670
amount, less the actual/estimated under-recovery amount
of $30,984,325 approved in Order No. PSC-04-1276-FOF-EI,
issued December 23, 2004 in Docket No. 040001-EI results
in a net over-recovery amount for the period of

$5,106,655.

A significant driver for the over-recovery was the
result of Order No. PSC-04-0999-FOF-EI whereby the
Commission disallowed a portion of the waterborne coal
transportation costs incurred by Tampa Electric under
the current contract with TECO Transport. The actual
2004 waterborne transportation disallowance, calculated
as prescribed in the aforementioned order is
$13,426,496. While Tampa Electric maintains that the
disallowance 1is not appropriate and has asked the
Commission to reconsider its decision, the disallowance
was booked, pursuant to generally accepted accounting
principles, because the Commission’s decision resulted

6
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in a probable expense for Tampa Electric and could be
quantified. The $13,426,496 disallowance is included in
the actual fuel cost under-recovery of $25,877,670 and
reflected in the final cost over-recovery of $5,106,655

for the period January 2004 through December 2004.

What 1s the estimated effect of the $5,106,655 over-
recovery from the January 2004 through December 2004
period on residential bills during the January 2006

through December 2006 period?

The $5,106,655 over-recovery will cause a 1,000 kWh

residential bill to be approximately $0.27 lower.

Please describe Document No. 2 of your exhibit.

Document No. 2 is entitled "Tampa Electric Company Final
Fuel Over/(Under) Recovery for the Period January 2004
Through December 2004". It shows the calculation of the

final fuel over-recovery of $5,106,655.

Line 1 shows the total company fuel —costs of
$724,873,409 for the period January 2004 through
December 2004. The jurisdictional amount of total fuel
costs, which includes the waterborne coal transportation

7
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disallowance, is $693,053,508, as shown on line 2. This
amount is compared to the jurisdictional fuel revenues
applicable to the period on line 3 to obtain the actual
under-recovered fuel costs for the period, shown on line
4. The resulting $64,420,223 under-recovered fuel costs
for the period, combined with the interest, true-up
collected and the prior period true-up shown on lines 5,
6 and 7, respectively, constitute the actual under-
recovery of $25,877,670 shown on line 8. The
525,877,670 actual under-recovery less the
actual/estimated under-recovery of $30,984,325 shown on
line 9, results in a final over-recovery amount for the
period January 2004 through December 2004 of $5,106,655

as shown on line 10.

Please describe Document No. 3 of your exhibit.

Document No. 3 entitled "Tampa Electric Company
Calculation of True-up Amount Actual vs. Original
Estimates for the Period January 2004 Through December
2004", shows the calculation of the actual under-
recovery as compared to the estimate for the same

period.

What was the total fuel and net power transaction cost

8
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variance for the period January 2004 through December

20047

A. As shown on line A7 of Document No. 3, the fuel and net
power transaction cost variance 1is $55,139,529 or 8.2

percent more than originally estimated.

Q. What was the wvariance in jurisdictional fuel revenues

for the period January 2004 through December 20047

A. As shown on line C3 of Document No. 3, the company
collected $17,951,022 or 2.8 percent less jurisdictional

fuel revenues than originally estimated.
Q. Please describe Document No. 4 of your exhibit.

A. Document No. 4 contains Commission Schedules Al through
A9 for the months of January 2004 through December 2004.
Also included is a twelve-month summary detailing the
trénsactions for each of Commission Schedules A6, A7,

A8, and A9 for the period January 2004 through December

2004.

Wholesale Incentive Benchmark

Q. What is Tampa Electric’s wholesale incentive benchmark

9
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for 2005, as derived in accordance with Order No. PSC-

01-2371-FOF-EI, Docket No. 010283-EI?

A. The company’s 2005 benchmark is $1,024,322, which is the
three-vyear average of $838,302, $1,184,728 and
$1,049,937 actual gains on non-separated wholesale
sales, excluding emergency sales, for 2002, 2003 and

2004, respectively.

Hedging Transaction and Incremental O&M Costs
Q. Did Tampa Electric prudently incur incremental O&M
expenses for initiating and/or maintaining its non-

speculative financial hedging program in 200472

A. Yes. Tampa Electric prudently incurred $210,045 for
incremental O&M hedging expenses. An itemization of the
incremental O&M expenses by category will be provided as

an exhibit to the April 1, 2005 direct testimony of Tampa

Electric witness J. T. Wehle.

Q. Does this conclude your testimony?

A. Yes.

10
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TAMPA ELECTRIC COMPANY
DOCKET NO. 050001-EIT
FILED: 8/9/05

BEFORE THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
PREPARED DIRECT TESTIMONY
OF

CARLOS ALDAZABAL

Please state your name, address, occupation and employer.

My name is Carlos Aldazabal. My business address is 702
North Franklin Street, Tampa, Florida 33602. I am
employed by Tampa Electric Company - (“Tampa Electric” or
“company”) in the positioﬁ of Manager, Regulatory

Affairs in the Regulatory Affairs Department.

Please provide a brief outline of vyour educational

background and business experience.

I received a Bachelor of Science Degree in Accounting in
1991, and received a Masters of Accountancy from the
University of South Florida in Tampa in 1995. I am a
CPA in the State of Florida and have accﬁmulated 10
years of electric utility experience working in the
areas of fuel and interchange accounting, surveillance
reporting, and budgeting and analysis. In April 1999, I
joined  Tampa Electric as Supervisor, Regulatory

Accounting. In January 2004, I was promoted to Manager,

218
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Regulatory Affairs. My present responsibilities include
managing cost recovery for fuel and purchased power,

interchange sales, and capacity payments.
What is the purpose of your testimony?

The purpose of my testimony is to present, for Commission
review and approval, the calculation of the January 2005
through December 2005 fuel and purchased power and
capacity true-up amounts to be recovered in the January
2006 through December 2006 projection period. My testimony
addresses the recovery of fuel and purchased power costs,
incremental hedging operations and maintenance (“0&M”)
costs, capacity costs and incremental O&M security costs
for the year 2005, based on six months of actual data and
six months of estimated data. This information will be
used to determine fuel and purchased power costs and

capacity cost recovery factors for the year 2006.

Have you prepared any exhibits to support your testimony?

Yes. I have prepared Exhibit No. =~ (CA-2), which
contains two documents. Document ﬁo. 1 is comprised of
Schedules E1-B, E-2, E-3, E-5, E-6, E-7, E-8, and E-9,
which provide the actual/estimated fuel and purchased

2

o

)



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Fuel
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IO RN

REVISED 10/14/2005

power cost recovery true-up amount for the period January
2005 through December 2005. Document No. 2 provides the
actual/estimated capacity cost recovery true-up amount
for the period of January 2005 through December 2005.
These documents are furnished as support for the

projected true-up amount for this period.

and Purchased Power Cost Recovery Factors

What has Tampa Electric calculated as the estimated net
true-up amount for the current period to be applied in
the January 2006 through December 2006 fuel and purchased

power cost recovery factors?

The estimated net true-up amount applicable for the
period January 2005 through December 2005 is an under-

recovery of $147,656,222.

How did Tampa Electric calculate the estimated net true-
up amount to be applied in the January 2006 through

December 2006 fuel and purchased power cost recovery

factors?

The net true-up amount to be recovered in 2006 is the sum
of the final true-up amount for the period January 2004
through December 2004 and the actual/estimated true-up

3
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REVISED 10/14/2005

amount for the period January 2005 through December 2005.

What did Tampa Electric calculate as the final fuel and

purchased power cost recovery true-up amount for 2004?

The true-up was an over-recovery of §5,106,655. The
actual fuel cost under-recovery, including interest and
the waterborne transportation cost adjustment, was
$25,877,670 for the period January 2004 through December
2004. The $25,877,670 amount, less the actual/estimated
under-recovery amount of $30,984,325 approved in Order
No. PSC-04-1276-FOF-EI issued December 23, 2004 in
Docket No. 040001-EI results in a net over-recovery
amount for the period of $5,106,655. The final over-
recovery of $5,106,655 will be applied in the
calculation of the fuel recovery factors for the period

January 2006 through December 2006.

What did Tampa Electric calculate as the actual/estimated
fuel and purchased power cost recovery true-up amount for

the period January 2005 through December 2005?

The actual/estimated fuel and purchased power cost
recovery true-up is an under-recovery amount of

$152,762,877 for the January through December 2005

4
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REVISED 10/14/2005

period. The detailed calculation supporting the
actual/estimated current period true-up 1is shown in

Exhibit (CcA-2), Document No. 1 on Schedule E1-B.

Are incremental hedging O&M costs included in the
actual/estimated fuel and purchased power cost recovery
true-up amount for the period January 2005 through

December 20057

Yes. ‘The Commission authorized the recovery of
prudently-incurred incremental O&M expenses incurred for
the purpose of initiating and/or maintaining a new or
expanded non-speculative financial and/or physical
hedging program designed to mitigate fuel and purchased
power price volatility for its retail customers in Order
No. PSC-02-1484-FOF-EI, issued October 30, 2002 in Docket
No. 011605-EI. Therefore, as shown on Exhibit  (CA-2),
Document No. 1 on Schedule E1-B, 1line A-5b, Tampa
Electric included $218,277 for actual and estimated
incremental hedging o&M costs in its 2005

actual/estimated true-up calculation.

How are the incremental hedging O&M costsg calculated?

The total anticipated costs for 2005 are $387,430, and

5
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REVISED 10/14/2005

the base level amount is $169,153. Therefore, the
incremental hedging O&M cost is calculated by subtracting
the base level amount of $16%,153 from the $387,430 of
total anticipated costs, which results in an incremental

expense of $218,277.

Q. How does this amount vary from the original projection?
A. The currently projected incremental hedging O&M cost are
$111,103 more than the original projected costs. The

variance is due to increased hedging activities as a
percentage of total tasks performed by the fuel hedging
group. The increased hedging activities are the result
of additional counterparties used in hedging transactions

and more hedging agreements with those counterparties.

Capacity Cost Recovery Clause

Q. What has Tampa Electric calculated as the estimated net
true-up amount for the current period to be applied in
the January 2006 through December 2006 capacity cost

recovery factors?

A. The estimated net true-up amount applicable for January

2005 through December 2005 is an under-recovery of

$957,312 as shown in Exhibit (CA-2), Document No. 2,

6
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page 2 of 4.

How did Tampa Electric calculate the estimated net true-
up amount to be applied in the January 2006 through

December 2006 capacity cost recovery factors?

Tampa Electric calculated the net true-up amount to be
recovered in 2006 in the same mdnner as previously
described for the fuel and purchased power cost recovery
net true-up amount. The net true-up amount to be
recovered in the 2006 capacity cost recovery factors is
the sum of the final true-up amount for 2004 and the
actual/estimated true-up amount for January 2005 through

December 2005.

What did Tampa Electric calculate as the final capacity

cost recovery true-up amount for 2004°?

The final true-up amount is an over-recovery of $542,557
per the company’s March 1, 2005 true-up filing and as
shown in Exhibit (CA-2), Document No. 2, page 1 of

4.

What did Tampa Electric calculate as the actual/estimated

‘capacity cost recovery true-up amount for the period

7
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January 2005 through December 200572

The actual/estimated true-up amount is an under-recovery
of $1,499,869 as shown on Exhibit (CA-2), Document

No. 2, page 1 of 4.

Are incremental security O&M costs included for cost

recovery through the capacity clause?

Yes. Given the Commission’s previous authorization to
recover incremental security O&M costs arising as a
result of the extraordinary <circumstances of the
terrorist attacks of September 11, 2001, Tampa Electric’s

incremental security O&M costs are included for recovery

through the capacity clause. Therefore, as shown on
Exhibit = (CA-2), Document No. 2, Page 4 of 4, the
company requests recovery of $386,528, after
jurisdictional separation, for 2005 actual/estimated

incremental security O&M expenses.

How does this amount vary from the original projection?

The actual/estimated incremental security O&M exXpenses
are $22,949 more than the original projected costs. The

2005 projection represented an annual reduction in

8
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expected security spending of approximately 35 percent

compared to 2004 actual costs.

Did Tampa Electric evaluate and calculate its incremental

“post-9/11” security project costs according to the

" detailed guidelines provided in Order No. PSC-03-1461-

FOF-EI filed in Docket No. 030001-EI on December 22,

20037

Yes. The first test is to determine if the company has
any O&M expenses for incremental security projects
included in the Minimum Filing Requirements (“MFR”) that
established its current base rates and to remove any such
expenses from the calculation of incremental expenses.
None of Tampa Electric’s post-9/11 increased security
costs were included in VMFRS that established its base
rates as the company’s last base rate proceeding was
approved in 1993, before the terrorist attacks occurred.
The second test is to identify any project coéts that are
reflected elsewhere 1in the company’s base rates and
remove them. Tampa Electric identified such project
costs for security and credited the savings to the total
incremental security expense. Finally, the third test is
to determine if the project will reéult in any offsetting
O&M savings and credit any savings to the project to

9
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reduce its total cost. Tampa Electric has evaluated its

“incremental security O&M expenses for related 0O&M savings

and credited the savings against total incremental
security O&M expenses. The calculation of incremental
security O&M costs is shown on Exhibit (CA-2),

Document No. 2, page 4 of 4.

Were Tampa Electric’s base vyear “post-9/11"” security
costs adjusted for retail energy sales growth as required

by Order No. PSC-03-1461-FOF-EI?

Yes. After adjusting the base year total by energy sales
growth, the baseline that should be used to calculate
2005 incremental security costs 1is $2,163,802. The
calculation of the baseline security O&M expense amount
is shown on Exhibit  (CA-2), Document No. 2, page 4

of 4.

Does this conclude your testimony?

Yes, it does.

10
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TAMPA ELECTRIC COMPANY
DOCKET NO. 050001-EI
FILED: 9/9/05

BEFORE THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
PREPARED DIRECT TESTIMONY
OF

CARLOS ALDAZABAL,

Please state your name, address, occupation and employer.

My name is Carlos Aldazabal. My business address is 702
North Franklin Street, Tampa, Florida 33602. I am
employed by Tampa Electric Company (“Tampa Electric” or
“company”) in the position of Manager, Regulatory

Affairs in the Regulatory Affairs Department.

Please provide a brief outline of your educational

background and business experience.

I received a Bachelor of Science Degree in Accounting in
1991, and received a Masters of Accountancy from the
University of South Florida in Tampa in 1995. I ém a
CPA in the State of Florida and have accumulated 10
yvears of électric utility experience working in the
areas of fuel and interchange accounting, surveillance
reporting, budgeting and analysis, and regulatory
affairs. In .April' 1999, I joined Tampa Electric as

Supervisor, Regulatory Accounting. In January 2004, I

—
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was promoted to Manager, Regulatory Affairs. My present
responsibilities include managing cost recovery for fuel
and purchased power, interchange sales, and capacity

payments.
What is the purpose of your testimony?

The purpose of my testimony is to present, for Commission
review and approval, the proposed aﬁnual capacity cost
recovery factors, the proposed annual levelized fuel and
purchased power cost recovery factors and the projected
wholesale incentive benchmark for January 2006 through
December 2006. In addition, I will address the 2006
projected incremental security costs as a result of the
September 11, 2001 attacks; the appropriate base amount
and period for calculating incremental security costs;
and the projected incremental operating and maintenance
(“O&M”) costs associated with Tampa Electric’s hedging
activities. I will also describe significant events that
affect the factors and provide an overview of the
composgsite effect from the wvarious cost recovery factors

for 2006.

Have you prepared any exhibits to support your testimony?
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Yes. My Exhibit No. (CA-3), consisting of three
documents, was prepared under my direction and
supervision.‘ Document No. 1 of Exhibit No. (CA-3)

is furnished as support for the projected capacity cost
recovery factors. In support of the proposed levelized
fuel and purchased power cost recovery factors, Document
No. 2 is comprised of Schedules E1 through E10 and E12
for January 2006 through December 2006 ag well - as
Schedule H1 for January through December, 2003 through
2006. Document No. 3 provides the composite effect of
the proposed cost recovery factors on a 1,000 kilowatt-

hour (“kWh”) residential bill.

Capacity Cost Recovery

Q.

Are you requesting Commission approval of the projected
capacity cost recovery factors for the company's various

rate schedules?

Yes. The capacity cost recovery factors, prepared under
my direction and supervision, are provided in Exhibit No.
(CA-3), Document No. 1,‘ Projected Capacity Cost

Recovery.

What payments are included in Tampa Electric's capacity

cost recovery factors?
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Tampa Electric 1is requesting recovery through the
capacity cost recovery factor of capacity payments for
power purchased for retail customers excluding optional

provision purchases for interruptible customers.

The company is also requesting incremental security
expenses ‘as a result of the events of September 11, 2001,
as authorized in previous vyears. As shown on Exhibit

(CA-3), Document No. 1, Tampa Electric requests
recovery of $594,892, after jurigdictional separation,

for estimated expenses in 2006.

Were Tampa Electric’s base vyear “post-9/11” security
costs adjusted for retail energy sales growth as required
by Order No. PSC-03-1461-FOF-EI, filed in Docket No.

030001-EI on December 22, 20037

Yes. Tampa Electric’s 2005 actual adjusted base year
total security O&M costs were $2,163,802. After
adjusting this amount for expected energy sales growth, a
$2,205,563 baseline was used to calculate Tampa
Electric’s 2006 incremental security costs. This
calculation is shown on Exhibit @~ (CA-3), Document No.

1, page 4 of 4.
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Please summarize the proposed capacity cost recovery
factors by rate schedule for January 2006 through

December 2006.

Capacity Cost Recovery

Rate Schedule Factor (cents per kWh)

Average Factor 0.287
RS 0.356
GS and TS 0.321
GSD, EV-X 0.263
GSLD and SBF : 0.240
Is-1, IS-3, SBI-1, SBI-3 0.022
SL-2, OL-1 and OL-3 0.045
These factors are shown in Exhibit No. ____ (ca-3),

Document No. 1, page 3 of 4.

How does Tampa Electric's proposed average capacity cost
recovery factor of 0.287 cents per kWh compare to the

factor for January through December 2005?

The proposed capacity cost recovery factor is 0.015 cents
per kWh (or $0.15 per 1,000 kWh) lower than the average

capacity cost recovery factor of 0.302 cents per kWh for

‘the January 2005 through December 2005 period.

5
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Fuel and Purchased Power Cost Recovery Factors

Q.

What is the appropriate amount of the base fuel and

purchased power cost recovery factor for the year 20067

The appropriate amount for the 2006 period is 5.413 cents
per kWh before the normal application of factors that
adjust for wvariations in line losses. Schedule E1 of
Exhibit No. _ (CA-3), Document No. 2, Fuel Projection,
shows the appropriate wvalues for the total fuel and
purchased power cost recovery factor as projected for the

period January 2006 through December 2006.

Please describe the information provided on Schedule E1-

C.
The Generating Performance Incentive Factor (“GPIF”) and
true-up factors are provided on Schedule E1-C. Tampa

Electric has calculated a GPIF reward of $729,534, which
is to be included in the calculation of the total fuel
and purchased power cost recovery factors. Additionally,
E1-C indicates the net true-up amount for the January
2005 through. December 2005 period. The net true-up
amount for this period is an under-recovery of

$147,656,222.

o

o
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REVISED 10/14/2005

Please describe the information provided on Schedule E1-

D.

Schedule El1-D presents Tampa Electric’s on-peak and off-
peak fuel adjustment factors for January 2006 through

December 2006.

Please describe the information provided on Schedule El1-

E.

Schedule El1-E presents the standard, on-peak and off-peak
fuel adjustment factors after adjusting for variations in

line losses.

Please summarize the proposed fuel and purchased power
cost recovery factors by rate schedule for January 2006

through December 2006.

Fuel Charge

Rate Schedule Factor (cents per kWh)
Average Factor 5.413

RS, GS and TS 5.435

RST and GST 6.613 {on-peak)

4.811 (off-peak)

SL-2, OL-1 and OL-3 5.081
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GSD, GSLD, and SBF 5.415

GSDT, GSLDT, EV-X and SBFT 6.589 (on-peak)
4.793 (off-peak)

Is-1, IsS-3, SBI-1, SBI-3 5.280

IsT-1, IST-3, SBIT-1, SBIT-3 6.424 (on-peak)

4.673 (off-peak)

Q. How does Tampa Electric's proposed average fuel
adjustment factor of 5.413 cents per kWh compare to the
average fuel adjustment factor for the January 2005

through December 2005 period?

A. The proposed fuel charge factor is 1.637 cents per kWh
(or $16.37 per 1,000 kWh) higher than the average fuel
charge factor of 3.776 cents per kWh for the January 2005
through December 2005 period. The resulting increase and
the measures taken by Tampa Electric to mitigate the
impact to customers are discussed later in this

testimony.

Events Affecting the Projection Filing

Q. Are there any significant events reflected in the
calculation of the 2006 fuel and purchased power and
capacity cost recovery projections that were not

reflected in last year’s projections?

8
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Yes. There are three significant events. These are 1)
the increase in natural gaé and coal commodity prices; 2)
the company’ s wholesale  purchases; and 3) Tampa
Electric’s recovery of waterborne coal transportation
costs as required in Order No. PSC-04-0999-FOF-EI (“Order

No. 04-0999”) issued October 12, 2004 in Docket No.

'031033-EI.

Please describe the first event that affects the

company’s projection filing.

Tampa FElectric’s natural gas-fired Bayside Station became
fully operational in January 2004, thereby increasing the
company’s use of natural gas. Natural gas prices have
increased in recent years and have shown the same market
volatility that has occurred with oil prices.
Similarly, coal prices have increased due to high demand
and leaner utility coal stockpiles. Since the 2005
projection was filed in September 2004, the average 2005
natural gas and coal prices per MMBTU have increased 27;6
and 15.6 percent, respectively. Witness J. T. Wehle's
direct testimony describes the increase in fuel costs in
more detail. Both natural gas and coal commodity prices
are key drivers of Tampa Electric’s increased fuel costs
reflected in its August 2005 actual/estimated fuel and

9
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purchased power filing as well as in the 2006 projection
filing. The higher pricing is expected to continue
through 2006; therefore, Tampa Electric 1is seeking
recovery of increased fuel costs through the Fuel and

Purchased Power Cost Recovery Clause in 2006.
Please describe the second event.

Tampa Electric entered into a cost effective purchase
agreement with Calpine Energy Services, L.P. The
purchase will improve supply reliability for retail
ratepayers in 2005 and 2006‘ at reasonable and prudent
costs. The direct testimony of Tampa Electric witness B.
F. Smith describes the purchase and demonstrates that the
costs associated with the purchased power agfeement are
prudent and appropriate for recovery through the Fuel and

Purchased Power and Capacity Cost Recovery Clauses.

Tampa Electric also intends to enter into a one year
purchase agreement to replace the agreement with
Progress Energy Florida, which will expire at the end of
2005. The company is actively monitoring the market for
a purchased power provider; however, no specific entity
has been identified to date. The replacement purchase
will be evaluated to determine the reliability as well

10
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as economic benefit it would provide.

Please describe the third event.

The third event relates to the disallowance of costs
required by FPSC Order No. 04-0999, which specifies that
a portion of the costs incurred by Tampa Electric under
the current contract with TECO Transport is not
reasonable for cost recovery. The annual adjustment to
the company’s fuel cost recovery is projected to be
$15,315,000 in 2006. This adjustment will be trued up
to reflect the actual tons shipped and associated
calculated disallowances as part of the normal true-up

process.

Have the impacts of Hurricane Katrina affected the

company’s projection filing?

Yes, as discussed in the testimony of witness J.T.
Wehle, Hurricane Katrina has" contributed to the
volatility by causing a recent spike in natural gas
prices. Due to the recency of this event and the fact
that damage assessments are still being performed, only
the winter impact associated with the rise in natural
gas prices was incorporated.

11
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Regulatory Treatment

Q.

Do the fuel and purchased power cost recovery factors for
the 2006 period include costs resulting from equipment

failure, force majeure or breach of contract?

Yes. Tampa Electric 1is requesting recovery for the fuel
and purchased power costs resulting from the Polk Unit 1
rotor failure and the default of No. 1 Contractors, one

of Tampa Electric’s cocal suppliers.

Is it appropriate for Tampa Electric to recover costs
resulting from equipment failure, force majeure or breach

of contract prior to exhausting all avenues of redress?

Yes. In the case of the equipment failure for Polk Unit
1, described in more detail in the testimony of witness
W.A. Smotherman, it is clearl? appropriate for Tampa
Electric to recover replacement fuel and purchased power
costs on a current basis. The equipment failure was not
due to any failure of Tampa Electric to follow good
utility practices and, therefore, was an event beyond
Tampa Electric’s control. Because of the equipment
failure, Tampa Electric acted prudently in securing
replacement fuel and purchased power reguired to serve
its customers.

Regulatory precedent dictates that

12
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prudently incurred fuel-related expenses should Dbe

recovered through the fuel and purchased power clause.

Similarly, in thé case o0f the default by No. 1

Contractors, described in more detail in witness J.T.

Wehle’s testimony, Tampa Electric has acted prudently in

immediately securing alternate coal suppliers to ensure

uninterrupted fuel supply and reliability of service.

Tampa Electric is evaiuating all avenues of redress for
‘the equipment failure at Polk Unit 1, as well as
pursuing 1legal action in the default from No. 1
Contractors, and will pursue all actions that appear
likely to result in reimbursement for incurred damages.
In the event the compahy is able to achieve
reimbursement 1in excess of equipment replacement. wvalue
for the Polk Unit 1 equipment, and any reimbursement
from No. 1 Contractors . will be flowed through to Taﬁpa

Electric’s customers as a credit to the fuel clause.

Wholesale Incentive Benchmark Mechanism
Q. What is Tampa Electric’s projected wholesale incentive

benchmark for 20067

A. The company’s projected 2006 benchmark is $1,188,811,

13
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which is the three-year average of $1,184,728, $1,049,937
and $1,331,768 in gains on the company’s non-separated
wholesale sales, excluding emergency sales, for 2003,

2004 and 2005 (estimated/actual), respectively.

Does Tampa Electric expect gains in 2006 from non-
separated wholesale sales to exceed its 2006 wholesale

incentive benchmark?

Yes. Tampa Electric anticipates that sales will exceed
the projected benchmark by $2,510,789 of which 80 percent

or $2,008,631 will flow back to ratepayers.

Incremental Hedging 0&M Costs

Q.

Is Tampa Electric seeking to recover prudently incurred

projected incremental O&M costs for initiating and/or

‘maintaining its non-speculative financial hedging program

in 20067

Yes. The projected incremental 0O&M expenses are shown
on Exhibit No. (CA-3), Document No. 2, Schedule E2,
line 8c. Exhibit No. (JTW-2) of the direct

testimony of Tampa Electric witness J. T. Wehle itemizes

the expected 0&M expenses by functional category.

14
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Cost Recovery Factors

Q.

What is the composite effect of Tampa Electric’s proposed
changes in its capacity, fuel and purchased power,
environmental and energy conservation cost recovery

factors on a 1,000 kWh residential customer’s bill?

Given the unprecedented increases 1in fuel commodity
prices and ©purchased power costs, Tampa Electric
implemented a strategy in 2005 to sell available SO,
allowances to help mitigate some of the impact of rising
fuel and purchased power prices. This is described in
more detail in witnesSes H. T. Bryant’'s and G. M.
Nelson’s testimonies filed in Docket No. 050007-EI. Even
with the 80, allowance sales, as well as the prudent
procurement practices and hedging strategies described by
witness J. T. Wehle, the composite effect on a
residential bill for 1,000 kWh is an increése cf $11.54
beginning January 2006. These charges are shown 1in

Exhibit " (CA-3), Document No. 3.
When should the new rates go into effect?

The new rates should go into effect concurrent with the

first billing cycle for January 2006.

T
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A.

Does this conclude your testimony?

Yes,

it does.
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BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE CCMMISSION
PREPARED DIRECT TESTIMONY
OF

BENJAMIN F. SMITH

Please state your name, address, occupation and
employer.
My name 1is Benjamin F. Smith. My business address is

702 North Franklin Street, Tampa, Florida 33602. I am
employed by Tampa Electric Company (“Tampa Electric” or
“company”) in the Wholesale Marketing and Fuels group

within the Fuels Management Department.

Please provide a brief outline of your educational

background and business experience.

I received a Bachelor of Science degree in Electric
Engineering in 1991 from the University of South Florida
in -Tampa, Florida. I joined Tampa Electric in 1990 as a
cooperative education student. During my years with the
company, I have worked in the areas of transmission
engineering, distribution engineering, resource
planning, retail marketing, and wholesale marketing. I

am currently the Manager of Wholesale Power in the
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Wholesale Marketing and Fuels group. My
responsibilities are to evaluate, pursue, and negotiate
hourly and other short-term purchase and sale
opportunities within the wholesale power market. In
this capacity, I interact with wholesale power market

participants such as utilities, municipalities, electric

cooperatives, power marketers, and other wholesale

generators.

Have you previously testified before this Commission?

Yes. I testified before this Commission in Docket Nos.
030001-EI and 040001-EI. My testimony described the
appropriateness and  prudence of Tampa Electric’s

wholesale purchases and sales.

What 1is the purpose of your direct testimony in this

proceeding?

The purpose of my testimony is to provide a description
of Tampa Electric’s purchased power agreements that the
company has entered into and for which it is seeking
cost recovery through the Fuel and Purchased Power Cost
Recovery Clause (“fuél clause”) and the Capacity Cost
Recovery Clause. I also describe Tampa Electric’s

2
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purchased power strategy for mitigating price and
supply-side risk while providing customers with a

reliable supply of economically priced purchased power.

Please describe the efforts Tampa Electric makes to
ensure that its wholesale purchases and sales activities

are conducted in a reasonable and prudent manner.

Tampa Electric evaluates its potential purchased power
needs by analyzing the expected available amounts of
generation and the power needed to provide for the
projected energy and demand to be used by its customers.
When there is a need, the company aggressively shops for
wholesale capacity or enerqgy, searching for reliable
supplies at the best possible price from creditworthy
counterparties. These purchases are evaluated based on
forward and spot markets. The company engages in
whoiesale power purchases and sales with numerous
counterparties. The creditworthiness of each
counterparty 1s carefully checked before engaging in
energy transactions. Purchases are made to achieve
reserve margin requirements, to meet customers’ needs,
to supplement generation during both planned and
unplanned generating unit outages, and for economical
purposes. This process is followed to help minimize the

3
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cost of purchased power and maximize the savings to

customers.

Has Tampa Electric reasonably managed its wholesale
power purchases and sales for the benefit of its retail

customers?

Yes, it has. Tampa FElectric has fully complied with,
and continues to fully comply with, the Commission’s
March 11, 1997 order, No. PSC-97-0262-FOF-EI, issued in
Docket No. 970001-EI, which governs the treatment of
separated and non-separated wholesale sales. In
addition, the company actively manages its wholesale
sales and purchases with the goal of capitalizing on all

opportunities to reduce costs to its customers.

The company’s wholesale purchases and sales activities
and transactions are reviewed and have been audited on a
recurring Ppasis by the Commission. In addition, Tampa
Electric monitors its contractual rights with purchased
power suppliers as well as with entities to which
wholesale power is sold to detect and prevent any breach
of the company’s contractual righté. Tampa FElectric
continually strives to improve its knowledge of the
markets and the available opportunities to minimize the

4
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costs of purchased power and to maximize the savings the
company provides retail customers by making non-
separated wholesale sales when excess power is available

on Tampa Electric’s system.

What actions did Tampa Electric take to minimize

incremental purchased power costs during the 2004

hurricane season?

There were an unprecedented four consecutive hurricanes
in 2004 that affected the state of Florida—Hurricanes
Charley, Frances, Ivan, and Jeanne. Tampa Electric made
every effort to minimize incremental purchased power
costs due to the storms while providing reliable
supplies of energy to meet load. Tampa Electric made
economic purchases whenever possible; however, the onset
of these storms significantly impaired the company’s
ability to purchase power on a fofward basis because of
the uncertainty of load level, available transmission,
and fuel supplies within the marketplace. In addition,
to maintain system reliability during the storm season,
Tampa Electric also made reliability purchases. For
eiample, due to concerns that Hurricane Frances would
affect Tampa Electric’s generating resources at Bayside

and Big Bend stations, the company called on its
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existing 150 MW purchase from Progress Energy Florida.
Following the 2004 storm season, as fuel supplies became
more certain, the company continued to purchase power on

the spot market so long as the economics of the purchase

were favorable.

Did the 2004 hurricane season affect Tampa Electric’s

purchased power procurement strategies?

At the beginning of 2004, Tampa Electric’s risk
management strateqgy did not consider the possibility of
four hurricanes within two months. Although there are
no definitive industry reports on the probability of
another such storm season, the company has reviewed its
purchase power strategy in 1light of the 2004 storm
season. During futufe hurricane seasons, the company’s
basic strategy is to “get in front of the storm”. This
means that Tampa Electric, using available storm
tracking resources, will evaluate the impact of the
storm on the wholesale market as soon as possible.
Then, if needed, the company will purchase power on the
forward market, first for reliability reasons, and then
for economics. Absent the threat of a hurricane and for
all other months of the year, the company’s purchased
power strategy of evaluating economic combinations of

6
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long- and short-term purchase options remains unchanged.

Please describe Tampa Electric’s 2005 wholesale energy

purchases.

Tampa Electric assessed the wholesale energy market and
entered into long- and short-term purchases based on
price and availability of supply. The company expects
to meet approximately 17 percent of its customers’ 2005
energy needs through purchased power, which includes the
existing long-term, firm purchased power agreements with
Hardee Power Partners and qualifying facilities and the
150 MW non-firm purchase from Progress Energy Florida.
Tampa Electric purchases power to assist with price
stability and reliability of supply. For 2005, Tampa
Electric expects that 51 percent of its purchased power
will be from long-term contracts, and the remaining 49

percent will be purchased in the short-term market.

Please describe Tampa Electric’s 2006 wholesale energy

purchases.

In 2006, Tampa Electric expects that 46 percent of
purchased power will be from long-term contracts, and
the remaining 54 percent will be purchased in the short-

7
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term market. In addition to the existing> purchased
power agreements with Hardée Power Partners and
qualifying facilities, Tampa Electric negotiated a long-
term, firm agreement to purchase 170 MW of peaking power
from Calpine that begins May 1, 2006. Finally, Tampa
Electric will continue to evaluate economic combinations
of forward and spot market energy purchases during its
spring and fall generation maintenance periods and peak
periods to reduce the overall cost to customers. This
purchasing strategy provides a reasonable and

diversified approach to serving customers.

Please describe Tampa Electric’s purchase agreement with

Calpine.

Tampa Electric projects a need for firm capacity to meet
reserve margin requirements beginning in the summer 2006
and for each year through 2011. Tampa Electric entered
into a contract to purchase 170 MW of firm peaking power
from Calpine’s natural gas fired facilities in
Auburndale, Florida. The purchase will take effect
May 1, 2006 and expire at the end of April 2011. The
purchase substitutes for an additional combusticn

'

turbine on Tampa Electric’s system.

1
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How did Tampa Electric determine that the Calpine

" purchased power. agreement provided the greatest benefits

to its customers, when compared to other options?

The Calpine purchase was achieved through a competitive
bidding process supported by economic analysis from
Tampa Electric’s Resource Planning group. After viable
bids were identified, Tampa Electric modeled the Calpine
purchase and other options. Based on a comprehensive
analysis, the Calpine purchase was the most appropriate
option from a reliability and cost-effectiveness
standpoint, and it provides a projected $26.2 million of
sévings to customers over the 1life of the contract.
Tampa Electric then negotiated with Calpine to finalize

the details of the agreement.

Does Tampa FElectric plan to enter into any other new

purchased power agreements?

At this time, with the excepticn of seasonal purchases
for 2005 an% the long-term 170 MW peaking purchase from
Calpine beginning May 2006, the company has not reached
any agreements with other entities for forward
purchases. As previously stated, Tampa Electric
continues to evaluate economic combinations of forward

9
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purchases to reduce the overall cost to customers.

Please describe Tampa Electric’s wholesale energy sales

for 2005.

Tampa Electric has entered into various non-firm, non-
gseparated wholesale sales in 2005. These transactions
have provided benefits to customers because year to
date, 100 percent of the revenues from the sales were

returned to customers through the fuel clause.

Does Tampa Electric engage in physical or financial
hedging of its wholesale energy transactions to mitigate

wholesale energy price volatility?

Physical and financial hedges can provide measurable
market price wvolatility protection. Thus far, Tampa
Electric has engaged only in physical hedging for
wholesale transactions because the availability of
financial instruments within Florida is limited. The
florida market currently operates through bilateral
contracts between various counterparties, and there is
not a Florida trading hub where standard financial
transactions could occur with enough volume for a liquid
market. Due to this- lack of liquidity, the appropriate

10
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financial instruments to meet the company’s needs do not
currently exist. Thus, Tampa Electric has not purchased
any wholesale energy derivatives. Instead, Tampa
Electric employs a diversified power supply strategy,
which includes self-generation and long- and short-term
capacity and energy purchases. This strategy provides
the company the opportunity to take advantage of

favorable spot market pricing while maintaining reliable

service to its customers.

Does Tampa Electric’s risk management strategy for power
transactions adequately mitigate price risk for

purchased power for 2004 through 20067

Yes, Tamga Electric’s physical hedges have  been
successful, and the company expects them to continue to
provide customers with adequate protection from
purchased power price risk. For example, in 2004, Tampa
Electric purchased 150 MW from Progress Energy Florida.
This purchase has served as both a physical hedge and a
reliable source of‘economical power in 2004 and 2005.
The availability of this purchase has been high, and its
price is.based on the seller’s system average fuel cost,
providing some protection from increases in natural gas
prices that affect the price of purchased power.
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During the summer of 2005, Tampa Electric executed
agreements with Okeelanta and Reliant Enerqgy. The
Okeelanta purchase is a fixed price agreement, and ﬁhe
purchase from Reliant Energy is a cost-based call option
on peaking power. Both of these agreements reduce the

purchased power price risk for Tampa Electric customers.

As I stated above, in May 2006, Tampa Electric will
begin purchasing up to 170 MW of peaking power from
Calpine. This purChése is at a fixed heat rate, which,
although not at a fixed price, provides protection
against an increase 1in purchase power prices because
this purchase remains cost-based. This is the same type
of price protection provided by the company’s existing
long-term, firm purchased power agreement with Hardee
Power Partners. Finally, as 2006 approaches, the
company continues to evaluate forward purchase options

that further reduce the price risk of purchased power.

Mitigating price risk is a dynamic process, and Tampa
Electric continually re-evaluates its options in light
of changing circumstances and new opportunities. As far
as purchased power is concerned, Tampa Electric
continually strives to maintain an optimum level and mix
of iong— and short-term capacity and energy purchases to

12
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augment the company’s own generation.

Please summarize your testimony.

Tampa Electric monitors and assesses the wholesale
energy market to identify and take advantage of
opportunities in the wholesale electric poWer market,
and those efforts have benefited the company’ s
customers. Tampa Electric’s energy supply strategy
includes self-generation and long- and short-term power
purchases. The company purchases in both the physical
forward and spot wholesale power markets to provide
customers with a reliable supply at the lowest possible
cost, and Tampa Electric enters into non-firm, non-
separated wholesale sales that benefit customers. Tampa
Electric does not purchase wholesale energy derivatives
in the developing Florida wholesale electric market due
to a lack of financial instruments that are appropriate
for the company’s operations. It does, however, employ
a diversified power supply strategy to mitigate price

and supply risks.

Does this conclude your testimony?

Yes.
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TAMPA ELECTRIC COMPANY
DOCKET NO. 050001-EI
FILED: 04/01/05

BEFORE THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
PREPARED DIRECT TESTIMONY
OF

JOANN T. WEHLE
Please state your name, address, occupation and employer.

My name is Joann T. Wehle. My business address is 702 N.
Franklin Street, Tampa, Florida 33602. I am employed by
Tampa Electric Company (“Tampa Electric” or “company”) as

Director of the Wholesale Marketing and Fuels Department.

Please provide a brief outline of your educational

background and business experience.

1 received a Bachelor's of Business Administration Degree
in Accounting in 1985 from St. Mary's College, South
Bend, Indiana. I am a CPA in the State of Florida and
worked in several accounting positions brior to joining
Tampa Electric. I began my career with Tampa Electric in
1990 as an auditor in the Audit Services Department. I
became Senior Contracts Administrator, Fuels in 1995. In
1999, I was promoted to Director, Audit Services and
subsequently rejoined the Fuels Department as Director in

April 2001. I became Director, Wholesale Marketing and
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Fuels in August 2002. I am responsible for managing
Tampa Electric’s wholesale energy marketing and fuel-
related activities.

Please state the purpose of your testimony.

The purpose of my testimony is to present, for . the

Florida Public Service Commission’s (“FPSC” or
“Commission”) review, information regarding the 2004
performance of Tampa Electric’s risk management

activities, as required by the terms of the stipulation
entered into by the parties to Docket No. 011605-EI and
approved by the Commission in Order No. PSC-02-1484-FOF-
EI. In addition, I will present details regarding the
appropriateness for recovery of $210,045 in incremental
operations and maintenance (“0&M”) expenses associated

with hedging activities.

Have vyou prepared any exhibits in support of your

testimony?
Yes. Exhibit No. {(JTW-1) was prepared under wmy
direction and supervision. My exhibit shows Tampa

Electric’s calculation of its 2004 incremental hedging

O&M expenses.

3




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

i

o

What is the source of the data you will present by way

of testimony or exhibits in this proceeding?

Unless otherwise indicated, the source of the data is
books and records of Tampa Electric. The books and
records are kept in the regular course of business in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
and practices, and provisions of the Uniform System of

Accounts as prescribed by this Commission.

What were the results of Tampa Electric’s risk management

activities in 20047

Ag outlined in Tampa Electric’s annual Risk Management
Plan most recently filed on September 9, 2004 in Docket
No. 040001-EI, the company strives to reduce fuel price
volatility while maintaining a reliable supply of fuel.
In an effort to 1limit exposure to market price
fluctuations of natural gas Tampa Electric established a
hedging program. The program was updated and approved by
the company’s Risk Authorizing Committee (“RAC”) in
August 2004. Tampa Electric currently. follows the

program as approved by the RAC.

On April 1, 2005 Tampa Electric filed its annual risk
3
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management report, which describes the outcomes of its
2004 risk management activities. As the report
indicates, Tampa Electric’s 2004 hedging activities
produced a net savings of $14.3 million for its

cugtomers.

How did Tampa Electric’s fuel mix change in 20047

Tampa Electric completed its transition from burning
predominantly coal to utilizing a mix of natural gas and
coal as H. L. Culbreath Bayside (“Bayside”) Unit No. 2
became commercially operational on January 15, 2004. As
a result of repowering the coal-fired Gannon Station to
the natural gas-fired Bayside Station, Tampa Electric’s
reliance on natural gas for retail generation increased

from three percent in 2002 to 38 percent in 2004.

Did the addition of Bayside Unit No. 2  impact Tampa

Electric’s hedging activity in 20047?

Yes, the addition of Bayside Unit No. 2 increased the
volume of natural gas needed; as a result, Tampa Electric
continued to augment its hedging strategies to mitigate
natural gas price volatility. The enhancements to the

risk management plan are described in the company’s risk

4
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management report filed on April 1, 2005.

Did Tampa Electric implement a hedging information

system?

Yes, as planned Tampa Electric implemented Sungard’s
Nucleus Risk Management System (“Nucleus”) and booked the

first month of transactions in April 2004.
What capabilities does Nucleus provide?

Nucleus records all natural gas hedging transactions and
calculates risk management reports common to the
industry. In addition, Nucleus supports sound hedging
practices with its contract management separation of
duties, credit tracking, transaction limits, deal
confirmation, and business report generation functions.
The Nucleus system also records all physical natural gas
transactions. By consolidating physical transactions and
financial natural gas hedging transactions into the
Nucleus system Tampa Electric has improved contract,

credit management and risk exposure analysis.

What were the results of the company’s incremental
hedging activities in 20047

5
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The incremental hedging activities enhanced Tampa
Electric’s hedging processes, procedures, controls and
capabilities. As a result, natural gas hedging
activities protected Tampa Electricfs customers from
price volatility on _ of the natural gas used in
the company’s plants. The net result of natural gas
hedging activity in 2004 was a savings of $8.4 million,
when the instrument prices were compared to market priées

on settled positions.

Did the company  use financial hedges for . other

commodities in 20047?

No, Tampa Electric did not use financial hedges for other
commodities because of its fuel mix. Historically, Tampa
Electric has primarily relied on coal as a boiler fuel.
The price of coal is relatively stable compared to the
prices of oil-aﬁd natural gas. In addition, there are no
financial hedging instruments for the types of coal the
company uses. Tampa Electric consumes a small amount of
oil, making price hedging somewhat impractical; therefore
the company did not use financial hedges for oil. The
company didrnot use financial hedges for wholesale energy
transactions because a liquid, published market does not

exist in Florida.

)




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

oo
g
R

Does Tampa Electric use physical hedges?

Yes, Tampa Electric uses physical hedges in managing its
coal supply. The company enters into a portfolio of
differing term contracts with various suppliers to obtain
the types of coal used on its system. In addition, some
coal supply contracts contain volume options that the
company uses when spot-market pricing is favorable
compared to the contract price. In 2004, these coal
strategies resulted in $5.9 million in savings to Tampa

Electric’s customers.

What 1is the basis for your request to recover the

commodity and transaction costs described above?

Commission Order No. PSC-02-1484-FOF-EI, in Docket No.
011605 states:
"Each investor-owned electric utility shall be-
authorized to charge/credit to the fuel and
purchased power cost recovery clause its non-
speculative, prudently—incurred-commodity costs
and gains and losses associated with financial
and/or physical hedging transactions for
natural gas, residual o0il, and purchased power

contracts tied to the price of natural gas.”

7
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Therefore, Tampa Electric’s request for recovery is in

accordance with the aforementioned Order.

Are you requesting recovery of

costs

Yes,

?

incremental hedging O&M

Tampa Electric requests recovery of $210,045 that

the company incurred as incremental O&M expenses.

Commi

Tampa

gssion, in Order No. PSC-02-1484-FOF-EI, states:

“Each investor-owned electric utility may
recover through the fuel and purchased power
cost recovery clause prudently-incurred
incremental operating and maintenance expenses
incurred for the purpose of initiating and/or
maintaining a new or expanded non-speculative
financial and/or physical hedging program
designed to mitigate fuel and purchased power
price volatility for its  retail customers each
year until December 31, 2006 or the time of the
utility’s next rate proceeding, whichever comes

first.”

The

Electric established its Dbase year  expenses

according to the portion of the employee’s time and

relat

ed expenses for hedging in 2001. The 2004 actual

8
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costs were then calculated using the same methodology.
Tampa Electric’s calculation of the incremental expenses
as well as base year expenses and 2004 actual expenses

are shown in my Exhibit No. (JTW-1) .
Does this conclude your testimony?

Yes it does.
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TAMPA ELECTRIC COMPANY
DOCKET NO. 050001-EI
FILED: 9/9/05

BEFORE THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
PREPARED DIRECT TESTIMONY
OF

JOANN T. WEHLE
Please state your name, address, occupation and employer.

My name is Joann T. Wehle. My business address is 702 N.
Franklin Street, Tampa, Florida 33602. I am employed by
Tampa Electric Company (“Tampa Electric” or “company”) as

Director, Wholesale Marketing & Fuels.

Please provide a brief outline of vyour educational

background and business experience.

I received a Bachelor of Business Administration Degree
in Accounting in 1985 from St. Mary's College in Notre
Dame, Indiana. I am a CPA in the State of Florida. and
worked in several éccounting positions prior to Jjoining
Tampa Electric. I began my career with Tampa Electric in
1990 as an auditor in the Audit Services Department. I
became Senior Contracts Administrator, Fuels in’1995. in
1999, I was promoted to Director, Audit Services and
subsequently rejoined the Fuels Department as Director in

April 2001. I became Director, Wholesale Marketing and

"

g

8



10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

Fuels in August 2002. I am responsible for managing

Tampa Electric’s wholesale energy marketing and fuel-

related activities.
Please state the purpose of your testimony.

The purpose of my testimony is to discuss the change in
Tampa Electric’s fuel mix, the company’s natural gas
strategies, fuel price forecasts, potential impacts of
the high and low fuel forecasts, and naturalrgas.impacts
related to Hurricane Katrina. In addition, I will
address steps Tampa Electric has taken to manage fuel
price and supply volatility and describe projected
hedging activities and incremental operations and
maintenance (“0&M”) costs for these activities, and I
sponsor Tampa Electric’s 2006 risk management plan,

submitted concurrently in this docket.

Have you previously testified before this Commission?

Yes. I testified before this Commission in Docket Nos.

030001-EI and 031033-EI, and I have filed testimony in
the annual fuel and purchased power cost recovery docket
since 2001. My testimony in these dockets described the

appropriateness and prudence of Tampa Electric’s fuel

2

-
}

r

-




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Coal

")
(!

procurement activities, fuel supply risk management, fuel
price volatility hedging activities, and fuel

transportation costs.

Have you prepared an exhibit in support of vyour

testimony?

Yes. Exhibit No.  (JTW-2), which consists of two
documents, was prepared under my direction and
supervision. Document No. 1 describes the calculation of

the 2004 waterborne transportation costs disallowance,
and Document No. 2 describes the calculation of the

company’s incremental O&M hedging costs.

Transportation Costs

Did Tampa Electric calculate the waterborne
transportation «costs submitted for cost recovery in
accordance with the Commission’s Order No. PSC-04-0999-
FOF-EI (“"Order No. 04-0999"), issued in Docket No.

031033-EI on October 12, 20047

Yes. The waterborne transportation costs that Tampa
Electric has and is seeking to recover reflect the
adquted rates per ton for each upriver terminal as well
as the adjusted ocean barge transportation rate. The

3
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company calculates the adjusted rates as described in

Order No. 04-0999. The river rate is adjusted using the

following formula:

(Weighted average rate per ton for all upriver terminals - $1/ton) x  Contract rate for specific
Weighted average rate per ton for all upriver terminals upriver terminal

The ocean rate is reduced by $2.41 per ton for shipments
from the Davant, Lousiana terminal and $4.08 per ton for

petroleum coke shipments from Texas, as prescribed by the

Commission order.

For 2004, Tampa Electric’s adjustment to its total
waterborne transportation costs totaled $13,426,496. The
variance from the Commission Staff’s projected
$15,315,000 disallowance amount was due to variations in
river terminal origins, petroleum coke purchases, and
total tons shipped, compared to projections. The total
2004 adjustment recorded in Tampa Electric’s final true-
up filing, submitted in this docket on March 1, 2005, was
calculated using the actual tons of coal and petroleum
coke shipped in 2004 and the methodology required by
Order No. 04-9999, These calculations are shown in
Exhibit No.  (JTW-2), Document No. 1. Therefore,
Tampa Electric’s 2004 adjusted coal transportation costs

4
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are appropriate for recovery through the Fuel and

Purchased Power Cost Recovery Clause (“fuel clause”).

Likewise, the expected 2005 and 2006 waterborne
transportation coéts have been adjusted using this same
methodology according to Order No. 04-0899 and will be
revised to reflect the actual tons shipped and associated
calculated disallowances as part of the ﬁnormal true-up
process. Accordingly, it is also appropriate for Tampa
Electric to recover its allowable 2005 and 2006 projected
transportation expenses included in the fuel clause for

coal transportation.

Fuel Mix and Procurement Strategies

What fuels will Tampa Electric’s generating stations use

in 20067

In 2006, Tampa Electric expects its fuel mix to remain
stable compared to the previous year. In 2006, natural
gas—-fired and coal-fired generation are expected to be 39

percent and 60 percent of total generation, respectively.

How. does Tampa Electric’s natural gas procurement and
transportation strateqgy achieve competitive natural gas
purchase prices for long- and short-term deliveries?

5
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Tampa Electric uses a portfolio approach to natural gas
procurement. The company’s portfolio consists of a blend
of baseload, intermediate and swing supply types along
with spot purchases. The contracts have various time
lengths to help secure needed supply at competitive
prices and maintain the ability to take advantage of
favorable natural gas price movements. Tampa Electric’s
portfolio consists of many approved counterparties with
which the company can trade for physical natural gas
supply, which enhances 1liquidity and diversifies its
natural gas supply portfolio. The portfolio also
includes natural gas prices based on both monthly and
daily price indexes, which represents diversification of

its natural gas price portfolio.

Tampa Electric has also improved the reliability of the
physical delivery of natural gas to its power plants by
diversifying its pipeline transportation assets,
diversifying its receipt points on the pipelines, and
utilizing pipeline and storage tools to access lower cost
supply and improve reliability during hurricanes or other
events that constrain natural gas supply. The daily
efforts of Tampa Electric to obtain reliable supplies of
natural gas at the most favorable prices directly benefit
its customers. Finally, Tampa Electric’s risk management

6
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activities improve the company’s natural gas procurement

activities, by reducing natural gas price volatility.

How has Tampa Electric diversified its natural gas

transportation arrangements?

In 2005, Tampa Electric diversified 1its transportation

assets when it entered into a cost-effective contract for

firm natural gas transportation on Gulfstream Natural Gas
Pipeliné, LLC (“Gulfstream”) that provides firm natural
gas transportation directly to Tampa Electric’s H. L.
Culbreath Bayside Station ("Bayside  Station”) from
Manatee County, via a 28-mile 1lateral pipeline. Tampa
Electric anticipates completion of the lateral pipeline’s
construction in late 2007 or early 2008. The
transportation agreement with Gulfstream adds a second

pipeline to Tampa FElectric’s capacity portfolio and

improves the company’s ability to meet its natural gas

hourly and daily demands.

How do Tampa Electric and its éustomers benefit from the

long-term firm natural gas transportation agreement with

Gulfstream?

The Gulfstream agreement benefits Tampa Electric and its

7
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customers in several ways. First, the Gulfstream
pipeline capacity 1is a cost-effective means of covering

Tampa Electric’s seasonal, daily and maximum hourly

‘pipeline capacity needs. Secondly, through access to

Gulfstream’s Park-N-Ride service, the agreement improves
Tampa Electric’s ability to manage daily natural gas
supply load swings and pricing volatility. Perhaps even
more importantly, the lateral and agreement enhance Tampa
Electric’s reliability by providing a second source for

natural gas supply transportation to the Bayside Station.

Please describe Gulfstream’s Park-N-Ride service.

Park-N-Ride is a service that allows Tampa Electric
essentially to store natural gas 1in the Gulfstream
pipeline until it 1is needed. The service also allows
Tampa FElectric to take natural gas from the pipe one day
and repay that natural gas at a later date. For example,
Park-N-Ride can be used to park natural gas on Gulfstream
during a weekend when electric loads are reduced and
then, pull the natural gas out of the pipe during the
weekdays when electric loads peak. Another example of
Park-N-Ride is to pull natural gas out during a day when
the electric 1locad changes significantly due to higher
than expected loads or loss of a unit.

8
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What is Tampa Electric’s coal procurement strategy?

Tampa Electric’s two <coal-fired plants are Big Bend
Station and Polk Station. Big Bend Station is a fully
scrubbed plant whose design fuel is high sulfur Illinois
Basin coal, and Polk Station is an integrated
gasification combined <cycle plant that is currently
burning a mix of Illinois Basin coal, petroleum coke, and
lower sulfur coal. The plants have varying operations
and environmental restrictions and require fuel with
custom quality characteristics such as sulfur content,
Btu/lb, ash fusioﬁ tempgrature and chlorine content.
Since coal is not a homogenous product, fuel selection is
based on these unique factors and price, availability,

and creditworthiness of the supplier.

Tampa Electric maintains a portfolio of bilateral, long-,
intermediate-, and short-term contracts for coal supply.
Tampa Electric monitors the market to obtain the most
favorable prices from sources that meet the needs of the
generating stations. The use of daily and weekly
publications, independent research analyses from industry
experts, discussions with suppliers, and coal
solicitations help in market monitoring and in shaping
the company’s «c¢oal ©procurement strategy to reflect

9
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current market conditions. This allows the company to
maintain stable supply sources while providing
flexibility to take advantage of favorable spot market
opportunities. The compény’s efforts to obtain the most

favorable coal prices directly benefit its customers.

Has Tampa Electric entered into coal and natural gas

supply transactions for 2005 and 2006 delivery?

Yes, it has. To mitigate price volatility and ensure
reliability of supply, Tampa Electric has contracted for
a significant portion of its expected coal needs for both
years through bilateral agreements with coal suppliers.

Two thirds of the company’s expected 2006 coal

" requirements are already under contract. Tampa Electric

has also entered intc contracts for 40 percent of the

company’'s expected natural gas needs for the winter of

2005 and all of 2006.

Has Tampa Electric reasonably managed its fuel

procurement practices for the benefit of its retail

customers?
Yes. Tampa Electric diligently manages its mix of long-,
intermediate-, and short-term purchases of fuel in a

10
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manner designed to reduce overall fuel <costs while
maintaining electric service reliability. The company
monitors and adjusts fuel volumes it takes within
contractually allowed maximum énd minimum amounts in
accordance with the price of fuel available on the spot
market to take advantage of the lowest available fuel
prices. The company’s fuel activities and transactions
are reviewed and audited on a recurring basis by the

Commission. In addition, the company monitors its rights

‘under contracts with fuel suppliers to detect and prevent

any breach of those rights. Tampa Electric continually

“strives to improve its knowledge of fuel markets and to

take advantage of opportunities to minimize the costs of

fuel.

Has Tampa Electric detected any suppliers’ default of its

fuel supply agreements?

Yes, 1in late 2004, No. 1 Contractors failed to deliver
coal as specified in its fuel supply agreement with Tampa
Electric. Tampa Electric has completed the notification
procedures contained in the agreement, and the company
has begun pursuing available legal remedies, including

litigation.

11
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Is it appropriate for Tampa Electric to recover
replacement coal costs prior to the resolution of its

claim against No. 1 Contractors?

Yes, it 1is appropriate for Tampa Electric to recover
replacement'fuel'costs prior to resolution of this claim.
The company recovers 1its fuel costs as the fuel is
consumed. Therefore, Tampa Electric should continue to
recover 1its coal expenses, including any replacement
purchases, as the fuel is consumed. In the event that
Tampa Electric is successful in its claim against No. 1
Contractors, monetary damages for the breach of contract

will be returned to customers through the fuel clause.

Projected 2006 Fuel Prices

Q.

How does Tampa Electric project fuel prices?

Tampa Electric reviews fuel price forecasts from sources
widely wused 1in the industry, includingk PIRA FEnergy
Consulting, Hill & Associates, the Energy Information
Administration, the New York Mercantile Exchange
("NYMEX”) and other energy market information sources.
Futures prices for energy commodities, as traded on the
NYMEX, are the primary driver of the natural gas and No.

2 o0il price forecasts. ‘The commodity price projections

12
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are then adjusted to incorporate expected transportation
costs and quality adjustments. The transportation and
quality adjustments are specific to the power plants to
which the fuel will be delivered and the locations from

which it is transported.

Coal prices and coal transportation prices are projected
using information from industry-recognized consultants
and are specific to ﬁhe particular quality and location
of coal utilized by Tampa Electric’s Big Bend Station and
Polk Unit 1. Final as-burned prices are derived using
expected commodity prices, associlated transportation
costs, additives wused, and analysis performed on coal

inventory.

How do the 2006 projected fuel prices compare to the fuel

prices projected for 2005?

The entire industry, including Tgmpa Electric, has
experienced rising fuel prices since 2004, and projected
fuel prices for 2006 are higher fof all commodities. The
global economy and the increasing industrialization of
countries 1like China have affected the price of natural
resources such as natural gas, oil, and coal. The demand
for these and other commedities, such as steel, has

13
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continued to exert upward pressure on fuel prices. Crude
0il prices have soared recently, as 1illustrated by the
recent price for crude oil of well over $60 per barrel,
due to factors such as the turmoil in the Middle East,
storage injections and withdrawals, and expected
hufricane activity near the U.S. coastline. Likewise,
the transportation <costs of these commodities are

affected by the increase in fuel prices.

What are the market drivers of the expected 2006 increase

in the price of natural gas?

Of the fuels utilized by Tampa Electric, natural gas has
experienced the greatest increase in price over the last
several years. In addition to price pressures from crude
0il, the market drivers include increased demand from
natural-gas fired generation, declining natural gas
production in North America, delayed liquefied natural
gas projects, concerns about the adequacy of natural gas
in storage, and concerns about production losses due to

tropical storm activity.

Did Hurricane Katrina affect Tampa Electric’s natural gas

procurement activities?

14
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Yes, since Hurricane Katrina affected the region where
much of the nation’s natural gas supply originates, the
entire industry 1is now facing production and delivery
constraints that affect the price and supply of natural
gas. Some natural gas platforms in the Gulf of Mexico
remain inoperable following Hurricane Katrina, which has
reduced production capacity. In addition, natural gas
transportation pipelines pass through the areas affected
by Hurricane Katrina. The natural gas transportation
pipelines may have been damaged under water, and the
damage 1s still being assessed. Furthermore, following
Hurricane Katrina, natural gas supplies in storage are
declining due to decreased production. These significant
post-hurricane effects have the potential to drive
natural gas prices even higher and continue to constrain

natural gas supply.

Do Tampa Electric’s projected fuel costs include natural

gas supply and price 1impacts related +to Hurricane

Katrina?

Yes, Tampa Electric was able to incorporate $42 million
in cost impacts seen at the end of August 2005 in its
projected fuel costs submitted for recovery. Due to the
recency of Hurricane Katrina, Tampa Flectric has

15
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attempted only to quantify the impacts to natural gas
prices for the winter of 2005 to 2006. This is
appropriate since market indicétors suggest that market
prices may ease in the summer months as we move farther
away 1n time from the impacts of Hurricane Katrina, which
will allow the market to settle down. However, given the
uncertainty related to current market pricing, Tampa
Electric recognizes the possibility that the company will
incur additional costs for natural gas, as well as for
other fuels and transportation. Tampa Electric will true

up these estimates to reflect actual costs as necessary.

What are the market drivers of the increase in the price

of coal?

Coal prices correlate with the prices of other fuels

since coal mining utilizes petroleum products, steel, and

‘lumber in its production processes; therefore, coal

prices have increased 1in conjunction with increases in

the ©prices of other fuels. Domestic transportation
delays experienced by the U.S. railrocads have also
influenced summer 2005 spikes in coal prices.

Furthermore, increased costs of SO, allowances contributed
to the higher prices for lower sulfur coals and coal in

general. For all of these reasons, Tampa Electric
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expects higher coal prices to continue through 2006.

Did Hurricane Katrina affect Tampa Electric’s coal

procurement activities?

Yes, Tampa Electric’s coal supply logistics were affected
by Hurricane Katrina. Prior to the storm, TECO Transport
moved ocean barges loaded with Tampa Electric’s cocal away
from the storm path; thus, the ocean barges were able to
continue delivering coal to Tampa Electric’s Big Bend
Station after Hurricane Katrina. Shipments have
continued, despite scme delays in the area near the mouth
of the Mississippi River. Damage at TECO Bulk Terminal
is being assessed, and TECO Transport has also begun
fleet recovery activities. As with its coal suppliers,
Tampa Electric continues to work with TECO Transport to

ensure that coal shipments continue. At this time, Tampa

‘Electric is not certain what measures will be required to

maintain appropriate coal inventories. Key activities
under consideration include the use of rail, the use of
third-party barges until TECO Transport’s fleet 1is
recovered, as well as seeking alternative terminal
services. Both TECO Transport and Tampa Electric are
committed to maintaining a reliable supply of coal at
Tampa Electric’s generating stations.
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Q. Do Tampa FElectric’s projected fuel costs include coal
supply and price impacts related to Hurricane Katrina?

. No. As I stated above, due to the recency of Hurricane

Katrina, Tampa Electric 1is not yet able to quantify

impacts to projected coal costs.

Q. Did Tampa Electric consider the impact of higher than

expected or lower than expected natural gas prices?

A. Yes. After reviewing the historical volatility in NYMEX
pricing and the implied wvolatility in natural gas
options, Tampa Electric has estimated that actual prices
in 2006 could be higher or lower than the base forecast
by as much as 35 percent. Major fundamental or technical
changes, such as abnormal weather, political instability
or production shortages, will also dramatically affect

price volatility, as demonstrated in the aftermath of

Hurricane Katrina.

Hedging Transactions and Related Expenses

Q. Please describe Tampa Electric’s risk management
activities.
A, Tampa Electric complies with its risk management plan as

18
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developed by the Wholesale Marketing & Fuels Department
approved by the company’s Risk Authorizing Committee.
The plan enables Tampa Electric to utilize system and
procedural controls to provide détailed and timely
reporting of hedging activities for management review and
oversight. The company also uses ﬁhe services of well-
known, respected energy consulting companies to assist
with forecasting fuel procurement and energy market
conditions. Tampa Electric describes its risk management
strategies and activities in detail in its Risk
Management Plan filed in this docket on

September 9, 2005.

Does Tampa Electric’s risk management strategy mitigate

natural gas price risk?

Yes. To protect customers from price volatility, Tampa
Electric'may purchase over-the-counter natural gas swaps
and collars. A swap is a financial derivative that
provides a “fixed‘ for floating” position. The buyer
(Tampa Electric) pays a fixed price for the natural gas,

which has a floating wvalue until cash settlement at the

end of the month. The sWaps allowed Tampa Electric to

lock in known natural gas prices and avoid upward price
volatility. The transaction costs of swaps are embedded
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in the price of the commodity.

Collars are combinations of call options (caps) and put
options (floors) that collar prices within a certain
range. An option is the right, but not the obligation,
to buy (call) or sell (put) natural gas at a pre-
determined price. 'With a collar, the company knows that
its future prices will remain within the predetermined

boundaries established by the call and put options.

Has Tampa Electric entered into financial hedging
transactions in 2005 to mitigate the price volatility of

natural gas?

Yes. Tampa Electric has purchased over-the-counter
natural gas swaps to protect customers from natural gas
price volatility. The hedging activity position .is
described in the Risk Management Plan submitted
concurrently with this testimony. - Tampa Electric will
continue to hedge according to its Risk Management Plan

approved by the Risk Authorizing Committee.

Has Tampa Electric used financial hedging to mitigate the

price volatility of its 2006 natural gas requirements?
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Yes. - Tampa Electric has already hedged a portion of its
expected 2006 natural gas supply needs using swaps and
will continue to take advantage of available natural gas
hedging opportunities that benefit its customers, while
complying with the company’s approved Risk Management
Plan. The 2006 hedging position for natural gas 1is
provided in the Risk‘Management Plan filed concurrently

with this testimony.

Are the company’s strategies adequate for mitigating

price risk for Tampa Electric’s 2004 through 2006

natural gas purchases?

Yes, thercompany’s strategies are adequate for mitigating
price risk for Tampa Electric’s natural gas purchases.
Tampa Electric’s strategies balance the desires for
reduced price wvolatility and reasonable cost with the
uncertainty of natural gas volumes. These strategies are
described in detail in Tampa FElectric’s Risk Management

Plan, also submitted in this docket on September 9, 2005.

Have recent increases in the market price of natural gas
affected the peréentage of Tampa Electric’s natural gas
requirements that the company has hedged or plans to
hedge?
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No. = The volume hedged is driven primarily by expected
natural gas consumption levels and the time until that
natural gas will be needed. Based on those two
parameters, the amount hedged is maintained within a
prescribed percentage range. Price 1is not a component
of the «current plan since the objective 1is price

volatility reduction, not price speculation.

Does Tampa Electric anticipate incurring incremental
O&M expenses related to initiating or maintaining its

non-speculative financial hedging program in 20067

Yes. In Order No. PSC-02-1484-FOF-EI the Commissicn
authorizéd the recovery of prudently-incurred incremental
O&M expenses for the purpose of initiating and/or
maintaining a new or expanded non-speculative financial
and/or physical hedging program designed to mitigate fuel

and purchased power price volatility for its retail

customers. Tampa Electric expects its 2006 total
incremental hedging 0O&M cost to be $235,798. These
incremental costs are itemized in Exhibit No. (JTW-

2), Document No. 2.

What 1is Tampa Electric’s appropriate base 0O&M expense
level used to calculate incremental hedging O&M expenses?
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Tampa FElectric’s base level of hedging O&M expenses of
$169,153 reflects the company’s actual 2001 costs prior
to its implementation of a prudent financial hedging
program in 2002. The base level costs were audited by
the Commission Staff in Audit No. 02-340-2~1, in Docket
No. 030001-EI. Tampa Electric’s expected 2006
incremental hedging O©O&M expenses are calculated using

this audited base level, as shown in Document No. 2 of my
exhibit.

Were Tampa Electric’s efforts through July 31, 2005 to
mitigate price volatility through its non-speculative
hedging program prudent?

Yes. Tampa Electric has executed hedges according to the
risk management plan filed with this Commission, which
was approved by the company’s Risk Authorizing Committee.

Does this conclude your testimony?

Yes, it does.
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CHAIRMAN BAEZ: All right.

Now we've got proposed stipulations.

MS. VINING: Yes. There are several issues where we
have proposed stipulations. I'm -- and I would also note that
I have distributed to the parties a list of additional issues
that have been stipulated since the issuance of the prehearing
order. And I don't know if you want me to list all of the ones
that there's a proposed stipulation on or do you want to go
issue by issue with the list that I gave you earlier?

CHAIRMAN BAEZ: Commissioners, what's your pleasure?
Do you want to go issue by issue or -- I think we've got, we've
got what amounts to a comprehensive list that's been provided
to you.

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Mr. Chairman, I'm not opposed
to taking all the stipulations -- unless there are particular
questions, concerns with any individual one, I guess we can
break it out. I don't have any concerns, so I could move them
in mass.

CHAIRMAN BAEZ: And let me, if we can just hold your
motion, put it on hold for a second. I want to confirm with
the rest of the Commissioners, do they have specific questions
on any particular stipulation? Commissioner Edgar, no?

Commissioners, we want to get ready to entertain a
motion on all the stipulated issues, all the proposed

stipulated issues, but I just want your confirmation that you

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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don't have questions on them; otherwise, we'll hold off.

Commissioner Arriaga, you're okay? Gooed. Well, Mr.
-- well, first, let me, let me clarify, I'm showing here that
Issue 17A and 17J can be dropped.

MS. VINING: Yes. That's correct.

CHAIRMAN BAEZ: And we don't need a motion for that;
right?

MS. VINING: No, I don't, I don't believe so.

CHAIRMAN BAEZ: All right. Then let the record
reflect that Issue 17A and 17J are, are dropped. There's also
a correction to the stipulated position on Issue 31A.

MS. VINING: Yes. The position that's listed in the
prehearing order is incorrect. I can go ahead and read the
corrected.

CHAIRMAN BAEZ: Can you do it? Because we're going

to take them all up at once.

MS. VINING: The position? Yes. I'll go ahead and

CHAIRMAN BAEZ: So if you can just go ahead and make
that correction for our benefit.

MS. VINING: The corrected position on Issue 31A
should read, "As described in Section 4 of Order
PSC-03-1461-FOF-EI, Order Number 03-1461 in Docket Number
030001-EI issued December 22nd, 2003, the Commission approved a

process for determining the incremental costs of

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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post-911 security measures. This order requires investor-owned

electric utilities to demonstrate that any related project

costs that are reflected in base rates are removed to reduce

the incremental security costs recoverable through the capacity
"clause. FPL's requested amount includes a briefing room

expansion project caused by an increased number of security

cfficers that is due to an NRC requirement. FPL maintains the
briefing room in question has been dedicated for security
purposes. Staff and FPL agree that if the briefing room had
not been dedicated for security purposes, a percentage of the
project costs would have been removed pursuant to Order Number
PSC-03-1461-FOF-ET.

"In addition, FPL maintains that it has followed the
procesgs described in Section 4 of Order PSC-03-1461-FOF-EI and
will provide the amount that the company has excluded pursuant
to Order Number PSC-03-1461-FOF-EI. FPL agrees with staff that
FPL's requested amount for 2006 contains a clerical mistake
%that has an effect of less than $10,000, not large enough to
change the factors; therefore, the company should make any
necessary adjustments in the true-up process in Docket Number
IOGOOOl—EI."

CHAIRMAN BAEZ: Did everybody get that? Okay. Very
well. Commissioners, you have the modified stipulated position
"on Issue 31A, and I think we're ready to take all the proposed

stipulated issues up together.
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MS. VINING: Chairman --

CHAIRMAN BAEZ: Yes.

MS. VINING: -- my one concern is it's fine for the
issues that are listed as proposed stipulated in the prehearing
order. But for the additional omnes that are on the handout I
gave you, do you want to take those up separately than all the
"ones that are listed in the prehearing order?

CHAIRMAN BAEZ: Do you -- is that your suggestion?

MS. VINING: That would be my suggestion just simply
because the only place that they're memorialized is on a
handout that I have given everyone.

CHAIRMAN BAEZ: Okay.

MS. VINING: We could make an exhibit. It's --

whatever you would judge to be the most expedient way.

CHAIRMAN BAEZ: I don't, you know -- well, the most
expedient is for you to make an exhibit that includes the
stipulated language. But we do have them before us in any case
and are able -- you know, we've got everything that we need for
us --

MS. VINING: Okay.

CHAIRMAN BAEZ: -- to be able to decide on them. The
only question is we'll just give it, we'll give it a number,
and that way you can get that in the record the same way you
did with the stipulated issues that are already listed.

MS. VINING: Sure. The number would be, 76 would be

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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the next number.

CHAIRMAN BAEZ: Show, show -- excuse me. Show
hearing Exhibit 76 to be a listing of the additional stipulated
igsues and their positions. And those for the record would be
13A, 13B, 13H, 14D, 16B and 17F. Did I get them all?

MS. VINING: Well, I would also note that for Issues

1, 2, 3, 6, 7 and 9 there's a stipulated position for Gulf

CHAIRMAN BAEZ: Let the record reflect that 1, 2, 3,
6, 7 and 9 are Gulf only stipulated. Any other clarifications
or --

MS. VINING: No. With that I think you can entertain
a motion on all the proposed stipulations.

(Exhibit 76 marked for identification.)

CHAIRMAN BAEZ: Very well. Commissioner Deason.

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Mr. Chairman, I move the
proposed stipulations contained in the prehearing order as
modified by staff.

COMMISSIONER BRADLEY: Second.

CHAIRMAN BAEZ: All those in favor, say aye.

(Unanimous affirmative vote.)

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Mr. Chairman, I move approval
of the stipulations contained in Exhibit 76, including the
Gulf-specific issues as described by staff.

COMMISSIONER ARRIAGA: Second.

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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CHAIRMAN BAEZ: Motion and a second. All those in
favor, say aye.

(Unanimous affirmative vote.)

CHAIRMAN BAEZ: Thank you. And without objection, we
will admit Exhibit 76.

(Exhibit 76 admitted into the record.)

MS. VINING: Did you just enter 76 into the record?

I wasn't sure if I missed that.

CHAIRMAN BAEZ: Yes.

MS. VINING: Okay. Great. Thank you.

And with that, I think we can move to the witnesses
for cross.

MS. CHRISTENSEN: Commissioners, one more preliminary
matter related to exhibits. I have certified copies of the
customer comments that have come in related to the FPUC issue,
the surcharge, and I don't believe Mr. Horton has any objection
to moving those into the record. Now we can either do it now
and that'll give the Commissioners an opportunity to look at
them before we get to the issue, or we can move them in at the
time we're taking testimony on those issues. But I was looking
to move them in now, if there's no objection.

MR. HORTON: I don't have any -- I haven't seen them,
but I don't have any objection to it.

CHAIRMAN RBAEZ: I tell you what, why don't we -- and

let's, let's not go off -- and we'll mark it, we'll mark it 77,
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and that's a composite of all the, all the --

MS. CHRISTENSEN: Customer comments.

CHAIRMAN BAEZ: -- customer comments. And,

Ms. Christensen, if you can afford Mr. Horton an opportunity
to, to see them and --

MS. CHRISTENSEN: Certainly.

MR. HORTON: Mr. Chairman, I doubt that I have any
objection to them. I just haven't seen them.

MS. CHRISTENSEN: Yeah. 1I'll provide a copy to --

CHAIRMAN BAEZ: That's fine. There will be an
appropriate time to get it in anyway, so that's --

MS. CHRISTENSEN: I'll provide a copy to Mr. Horton
as well as staff, and they can look through those and then I'll
see what we can do about moving them in.

(Exhibit 77 marked for identification.)

CHAIRMAN BAEZ: All right. Mr. Yupp, you weren't
sworn, were you?

THE WITNESS: Not vyet.

CHAIRMAN BAEZ: Okay. Then everybody, everybody I
can catch this afternoon stand up, and all those witnesses that
are in the room at this point, will you please stand up and
raise your right hand.

(Witnesses collectively sworn.)

GERARD J. YUPP

was called as a witness on behalf of Florida Power & Light

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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Company and, having been duly sworn, testified as follows:
DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. BUTLER:

Q Mr. Yupp, would you please state your name and
address for the record.

A My name is Gerard Yupp. My business address is
700 Universe Boulevard, Juno Beach, Florida.

Q By whom are you employed and in what capacity?

A I'm employed by Florida Power & Light as Director of
Wholesale Operations.

Q Do you have before you the following direct testimony
that was prefiled in this docket: First is entitled "Hedging
Activity January 2004 through December 2004" dated April 1,
2005; and the second is entitled "Projections January 2006
through December 2006" that was filed on September 9, 2005?

A Yes, I do.

Q Okay. Do you have any corrections to make to your
testimony or the attached exhibits?

A No, I do not.

MR. BUTLER: I'd ask that Mr. Yupp's prefiled direct
testimony be inserted into the record as though read.

CHAIRMAN BAEZ: Without objection, show the prefiled
direct testimony of Gerard Yupp entered into the record as
though read.

MR. BUTLER: Thank you. Commissioners, Mr. Yupp's
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exhibits have been preassigned Exhibit Numbers 4 through 10 in
the prehearing order or, I'm sorry, in the comprehensive

exhibit list. The only thing I would note is that Mr. Yupp's

Exhibit 4 is a confidential exhibit. It -- I don't think
anybody intends to use it here at the hearing. It was filed

Hwith the testimony when prefiled. We requested confidential

classification at the time, which you have granted. So I don't

think anything needs to be done about it further, but I just

wanted to note that it is confidential.

CHAIRMAN BAEZ: Very well. And I guess I would, I
would urge the rest of, the rest of counsel, if, if need be as
it arises, if you can point out the confidential exhibits as
well off of the list.

Thank you, Mr. Butler. You can proceed.
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BEFORE THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY
TESTIMONY OF GERARD YUPP
DOCKET NO. 050001-El

APRIL 1, 2005

Please state your name and address.
My name is Gerard Yupp. My business address is 700 Universe

Boulevard, North Paim Beach, Florida, 33408.

By whom are you employed and what is your position?
| am employed by Florida Power & Light Company (FPL) as Director
of Wholesale Operations in the Energy Marketing and Trading

Division.

Have you previously testified in the predecessors to this
docket?

Yes.

What is the purpose of your testimony?
The purpose of my testimony is to provide a review of FPL’s 2004
hedging activity, including the detail required by Item 5 of the

Resolution of Issues in Docket 011605-El approved by the

1
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Commission per Order No. PSC-02-1484-FOF-El, which states:
5. Each investor-owned utility shall provide, as part of its final
true-up filing in the fuel and purchased power cost recovery
docket, the following information: (1) the volumes of each
fuel the utility actually hedged using a fixed price contract or
instrument; (2) the types of hedging instruments the utility
used, and the volume and type of fuel associated with each
type of instrument; (3) the average period of each hedge;
and (4) the actual total cost (e.g. fees, commissions, options
premiums, futures gains and losses, swaps settlements)
associated with using each type of hedging instrument.
Additionally, this testimony addresses Items 13 and 14 from Staff's
workshop held on January 12, 2005. Item 13 requires each utility to
provide “a numerical comparison of the annual average price paid
for each fuel type (i.e., natural gas and oil} in the immediately
preceding year to the market price for each fuel type”. ltem 14
requires the same comparison for solid fuel. FPL's methodology for
these comparisons is divided into three categories: 1) hedged
commodities (i.e., natural gas and residual fuel oil), 2) light fuel oil
and 3) coal. For natural gas and residual fuel oil, my testimony will
provide a general overview of FPL’s hedging program process and
its physical fuel procurement process. My testimony demonstrates

that the hedging results FPL files each year provide the numerical
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comparison for natural gas and residual fuel oil that is contemplated
by ltem 13. Finally, my testimony separately addresses market
comparisons and the methodology behind those comparisons for

light fuel oil and coal.

Are you sponsoring any Documents for this proceeding?

Yes. | am sponsoring the following Documents:

GJY-1:2004 Hedging Activity

GJY-2: 2004 Light Oil Procurement Example

GJY-3:2004 Solid Fuel Activity

GJY-4: Evaluation of Petcoke Supply Bids for 2004 (SJRPP)

GJY-5:Long Term PRB RFP, February-March 2004 (Miller and
Scherer)

GJY-6:Long Term PRB RFP, August-September 2004 (Scherer)

Please describe FPL’s hedging objectives.

FPL's fuel hedging strategy aims to benefit FPL's customers by
reducing fuel price volatility, and to the extent possible, mitigating
fuel price increases, while maintaining the opportunity to take
advantage of price decreases in the marketplace. The primary
objective of FPL's hedging program is to reduce fuel price volatility,
thereby helping to deliver greater price certainty to FPL’s customers.

Although FPL’s hedging strategies may result in fuel savings to
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FPL’s customers, FPL does not execute speculative hedging
strategies aimed at “out guessing” the market in the hopes of
potentially returning savings to FPL's customers. FPL has
implemented a well-disciplined, well-defined and controlled hedging
program that is executed in compliance with FPL'’s risk management

policies and procedures.

Please summarize FPL’s 2004 hedging activities.

FPL’s 2004 hedging activities were successful in reducing fuel price
volatility and delivering greater price certainty for FPL’s customers.
Because the market trended upward after FPL's hedge positions
were in place for 2004, FPL’'s hedging activities in 2004 also
delivered a significant amount of fuel savings to FPL’s customers
(approximately $250 million). FPL will continue to monitor the
fundamentals of the energy markets and, as conditions change, FPL
will make further adjustments to its hedging program to meet its
objective of reduced fuel price volatility. Over time, FPL expects that
the cumulative impact of its hedging program will reduce fuel price
volatility and deliver greater price certainty for FPL’s customers,
while roughly balancing out the savings and losses resulting from

the hedged positions.

Does your Document GJY-1 provide the detail on FPL’s 2004

4
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hedging activities required by Item 5 of the Resolution of
Issues?

Yes.

Please describe how FPL implemented, executed and managed
its hedging strategy throughout the recovery period.

FPL's approach has been to analyze the appropriate hedging
strategy for the next recovery period during the first quarter of the
previous year. This analysis includes the determination of the
appropriate hedge percentages of both natural gas and residual fuel
oil and the appropriate hedge instruments to utilize for each
commodity. The goal of this analysis is to ensure that the hedging
strategy will effectively reduce fuel price volatility in any hedged year
by mitigating fuel price risk to FPL’s customers while maintaining the
opportunity to take advantage of fuel price decreases in the market
to the benefit of FPL’'s customers. The results of this analysis are

presented to management for final approval.

After approval, the hedging strategy is executed within the Energy
Marketing and Trading Division of FPL. Hedge transactions are
executed throughout the agreed upon transaction period in
accordance with the approved strategy until the desired hedge

levels are achieved.
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FPL continuously monitors its hedging levels throughout the
recovery period. FPL updates its fuel burn projections for the entire
recovery period on a weekly basis. These projections incorporate
the latest available information, including fuel prices, generation
availability and load. To the extent that the updated fuel burn
projections cause a change in FPL's hedge percentages that are
outside of the approved tolerance band, FPL will rebalance its
hedge positions within its predefined parameters as defined in the
approved hedging strategy. This procedure for monitoring and, as
required, rebalancing its hedging levels allows FPL to quickly
respond to changes in the fuel market and adjust its hedged

positions accordingly.

Is the procurement of natural gas and residual fuel oil physical
fuel supply separate from FPL’s hedging program?

Generally, yes. Most of FPL’s hedge positions are transacted in the
financial markets, and are not associated with physical deliveries.
The physical supply of natural gas and residual fuel oil is
predominately priced at a NYMEX settlement price or at an
established index. FPL does, however, procure some of its long-
term physical fuel supply on a fixed price basis, and the gains and

losses resulting from these transactions are included in FPL's
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hedging resulits.

Regardless of the pricing mechanism, FPL's procurement of long-
term physical fuel supply for natural gas and residual fuel oil is
based upon the same fuel burn projections that FPL uses to execute
and manage its hedging strategy. Short-term procurement or spot
procurement (monthly, next day, intra-day, spot cargo) is utilized to
supplement those long-term transactions, as needed to compensate
for variations in natural gas and residual fuel oil requirements on a
monthly and daily basis. For natural gas, monthly procui'ement is
primarily transacted as a differential (basis) off the NYMEX
settiement (“at the market”). Next day and intra-day transactions
are typically executed at a fixed price or index. Daily fixed price and
index transactions are deemed to have occurred “at the market” and
are not included in the hedge results. For residual fuel oil, spot
requirements are generally procured at an index and therefore

represent the market at the time of delivery.

Do the results of FPL’s hedging activity for natural gas and
residual fuel oil, as shown in Document GJY-1, provide the
market-price comparison requested in Iltem 13 from Staff's
workshop held on January 12, 2005?

Yes. As described above, a large portion of FPL's physical fuel
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supply for natural gas and residual fuel oil is procured at NYMEX
settlement or market indices. A comparison of FPL’s price paid
versus the market price for the physical supply of these fuels would
show no significant difference between the two. The variance from
“‘market” in FPL’s overall fuel price for natural gas and residual fuel
oil is generated from the application of its hedging gains/losses and
option premiums/transaction fees to the total dollars paid for each
commodity on a monthly basis. Because hedging gains and losses
are calculated by comparing the execution price of each hedge
position to the market price at the time of liquidation, these gains or
losses provide a good representation of the total price FPL paid for
natural gas and residual fuel oil versus the market price for those

fuels.

Does Document GJY-1 provide a market-price comparison for
light fuel oil?

No. Document GJY-1 covers only natural gas and residual fuel oil.
At this point, these are the only two fuel commodities that FPL
specifically hedges. Light fuel oil is used for unplanned peaking
events. These events are unpredictable, and therefore are not

included as part of the hedging program.

How does the price FPL paid for light fuel oil compare to the
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market price for light fuel oil during 2004?

FPL procures light fuel oil on an as-needed basis (“spot”). All spot
procurement for light fuel oil is transacted at the applicable market
index. Therefore, FPL's price paid for light fuel oil matches the
market price at the time of delivery. An example of this comparison
is shown in Document GJY-2, whichdetails an actual light fuel oil
transaction from 2004. The transaction was for approximately
420,000 gallons of light fuel oil priced at an applicable index.
Delivery of the 420,000 gallons occurred over a ten-day window.
Document GJY-2 compares the total dollars FPL was invoiced for
each delivery with FPL's calculation of what the total dollars should
be for each delivery. The calculation is performed by taking the
published index (as agreed to in the transaction terms) multiplied by
the received volume and adding in transport and pollution tax
charges. The difference between the invoiced total dollars and the
calculation total dollars should be zero if FPL paid the agreed upon
market price index, which is the case for the illustrative transaction
shown in Document GJY-2. This transaction is representative of all
of FPL’s light fuel oil procurement during 2004. Thus, the priceé
FPL paid for light fuel oil equal the market price of light fuel oil during

2004.

Please describe FPL’s coal procurement process.
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The procurement of coal or petroleum coke is accomplishedy through
one of three different mechanisms: 1) a bidding process, 2) spot
purchases or 3) contract negotiations. At St. John’s River Power
Park (SJRPP), procurement is done through JEA, the Operating
Agent for SURPP, on behalf of FPL. At Plant Scherer, procurement
is done through Georgia Power Company, as Operating Agent for

FPL.

Please provide the methodology FPL utilized to determine a
comparison between the prices FPL paid for coal versus the
market price for coal during 2004, as required by Item 14 of the
outcomes of Staff’s workshop held on January 12, 2005.

FPL’'s 2004 coal procurement activity is summarized in Document
GJY-3: 2004 Solid Fuel Activity. This Document shows all coal
procurement transactions entered into during 2004, detailed by
supplier, transaction type, commodity, term, purchase price and
market price (deliveries of coal pursuant to contracts that were
entered into prior to 2004 are not considered “2004 transactions”
and hence are not included on Document GJY-3). Transactions are

also grouped by location: “SJRPP” or “Plant Scherer.”

Transactions executed through a bid process are considered to be

priced “at the market,” as the bid represents current available prices
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for the specific type of coal and other circumstances specified in the
bid solicitation. Details of transactions that were executed through
bidding processes are provided in Documents GJY-4, GJY-5 and

GJY-6.

Spot purchases for both SURPP and Plant Scherer are compared on
Document GJY-3 to the best available market data at the time of the

purchase.

Finally, for SURPP, there were two transactions that fell into the
“contract negotiation” category. The first involves SJRPP’s term
contract with the Coal Marketing Company (CMC). This contract
provides, in part, for an annual tonnage nomination. The initial 2004
procurement strategy for SURPP envisioned a solicitation for spot
tonnage and therefore less than the maximum contract tonnage was
nominated with CMC. Observing the run up in both the domestic
and international steam coal markets, SURPP was able to secure a
narrow window to re-open the process and subsequently nominated
the maximum contract tonnage. The contract price and a
comparative market price<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>